
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85640420714
mailto:city.clerk@colfax-ca.gov


Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 

prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

December 9, 2020 

Page 2 of 4  

4 PRESENTATION 

4A. Retail Strategies - Presenter: Matt Tate   (Pages 5-29) 

5 PUBLIC HEARING 

5A. Public Hearing, Osborn Development Project, Site Plan / Design Review   (Pages 30-56) 

Staff Presentation: Amy Feagans, Planning Director 

Recommended Action: Conduct a public hearing, consider public and staff comments, and adopt 

Resolution __-2020 adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration and approving the Design Review and 

Site Plan for the Osborn Development Project located at 1836 Canyon Way. 

6 CONSENT CALENDAR 

Matters on the Consent Calendar are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No discussion 

of these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an item pulled from the 

Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the Mayor. 

Recommended Action:  Approve Consent Calendar 

6A. 

6B. 

6C. 

6D. 

6E. 

6F. 

Minutes ï Regular Meeting of October 28, 2020    (Pages 57-64) 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 14, 2020. 

Minutes ï Special Meeting and Workshop of November 4, 2020  (Pages 65-67)  

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Special Meeting and Workshop of November 4, 2020. 

Cash Summary ï October 2020   (Pages 68-79) 

Recommendation: Accept and File. 

Quarterly Investment Report ï Quarter ended 09/30/2020   (Pages 80-88) 

Recommendation: Accept and File. 

Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Local Transportation Funds and State Transit Assistance Funds Claim 

Documentation   (Pages 89-116) 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution __-2020 authorizing the City Manager to file claims or execute 

agreements for: Local Transportation Funds in the amount of $93,867 for streets and roads purposes 

(Article 8 ï Section 99400 of the California Public Utilities Code), and State Transit Assistance Funds 

of $8,317 for transit services (Article 6.5, Chapter 4, Section 99313 of the California Public Utilities 

Code). 

Batchelder Union Negotiation Contract Amendment   (Pages 117-129) 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution __-2020 approving the budgetary amendment to the Batchelder 

Group Labor Negotiations agreement in the amount of $10,000 for a total contract cost of $22,000. 

Notice to the Public: City Council, when considering a matter scheduled for hearing, will take the following actions: 

1. Presentation by Staff

2. Open the Public Hearing

3. Presentation, when applicable, by Applicant

4. Accept Public Testimony

5. When applicable, Applicant rebuttal period

6. Close Public Hearing (No public comment is taken, hearing is closed)

7. Council comments and questions

8. City Council Action
Public Hearings that are continued will be so noted. The continued Public Hearing will be listed on a subsequent council agenda 

and posting of that agenda will serve as notice. 



Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 

prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

December 9, 2020 

Page 3 of 4  

6G. 

6H. 

6I. 

6J. 

PG&E Microgrid Station Utility Easement APN 660-071-010   (Pages 130-138) 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution __-2020 authorizing the City Manager to execute a PG&E Utility 

Easement on APN# 006-071-010 that will allow PG&E to supply power to most of the City during 

public safety power shutoffs. 

WWTP Construction Grant ï Design/Build Contract with Holt Renewables   (Pages 139-195) 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution __-2020 adopting a Design/Build contract with Holt Renewables 

to design and construct a 481-kilowatt direct current ground mount solar power collection system at the 

Cityôs wastewater treatment plant with a 20% contingency in an amount not to exceed $1,944,870. 

Green Means Go   (Pages 196-200) 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution __-2020 Establishing Green Zones for the Green Means Go Pilot 

Project. 

Cintas Uniform Agreement   (Pages 201-207) 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution __-2020 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 5-year 

agreement with Cintas for uniform services in an amount not to exceed $32,461. 

7 PUBLIC COMMENT 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at committee 

meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the Council prefers 

formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 

8 COUNCIL AND STAFF 

The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at committee 

meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the Council prefers 

formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 

8A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items ï All Councilmembers

8B. City Operations Update ï City Manager 

9 COUNCIL BUSINESS 

9A. 

9B. 

9C. 

Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement for Pioneer Community 

Energy Expanding Pioneer Community Energy Joint Power Authority Membership  (Pages 

208-236) Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Recommended Action: Discuss and consider adopting Resolution __-2020 approving Amendment No. 

1 to the Amended and Restated Joint Power Agreement for Pioneer Community Energy expanding 

Pioneer Community Energy membership to include the County of El Dorado and the City of Placerville 

as Voting Members. 

Second Amendment to Digital Billboard Sign and Relocation Agreement with Sierra Property 

Development   (Pages 237-280) 

Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager and Alfred A. ñMickò Cabral, City Attorney 

Recommended Action: Discuss and consider adopting Resolution __-2020 authorizing the City 

Manager to execute the Second Amendment to the Digital Billboard Sign and Relocation Agreement 

with Sierra Property Development. 

Colfax Volunteer Fire Department Fleet and Merger Update   (Pages 281-283) 

Staff Presentation: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director and Brian Eagan, Battalion Chief 

Recommended Action: Discuss and consider directing staff to pursue capital purchase financing and 

merger options as a comprehensive fire service analysis for a future Council meeting. 











4

This mobile tracking service uses data collected 
from mobile phone users who have agreed within 
their apps and phone settings to enable location  
information. By drawing a geofence around a 
specific business or location, we are able gather 
valuable data about the customer base that has 
actively used their mobile device while in the 
identified location. This tool allows us to see where 
customers are coming from to shop in your market 
using actual data. This information is used to  
optimize your trade area, analyze  business 
locations, compare the frequency of visitors, and 
assist retailers in site selection. This is intended to 
support the trade area but does not solely define 
the trade area.

Mobile Data Collection

DISCOVER

The location tracked was 

Colfax - McDonalds

for the time period of 

November 2019
To 
November 2020

















12

Peer Analysis

DISCOVER

1 1

0 0

1

0

1

3

2 

0 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

4 

Automotive Coffee, Juice &
Smoothie

Computer &
Electronics

Exercise & Fitness General Merchandise Grocery &
Supermarket

Hardware & Garden Quick Service
Restaurants

Colfax Peer Average









16

Current Real 
Estate Overview

DISCOVER































City of Colfax 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

EXHIBIT A – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

1. The project as approved shall be in substantial compliance with the preliminary plan set

attached to the staff report dated December 9, 2020.

2. Permanent signage shall be approved under a separate Sign Permit. Temporary banners shall

only be displayed subject to the provisions of the City’s Sign Ordinance regulating

promotional events and require approval of a Sign Permit.

3. No truck or vehicle rental shall be conducted from the premises.

4. There shall be no outdoor storage of any kind.

5. Restrooms shall be accessible and available to employees and customers per the Plumbing

Code.

6. The owner/operator of the facility/business shall maintain in good repair all fencing, walls,

buildings, lighting, landscaping, driveway and parking area. The premises shall be kept clean

and in an orderly fashion.

7. The applicant shall be responsible for graffiti-free maintenance of the site, and shall remove

any graffiti within 48 hours of occurrence or City notification, whichever occurs first.

8. Perimeter fencing when seen from adjacent public rights of way or neighboring residential

property shall be solid CMU wall for approved by the planning director prior to installation.

9. The project operation shall implement Best Management Practices (BMPs) appropriate to the

uses conducted on-site to effectively prevent the entry of pollutants into storm water runoff.

10. The following control measures for construction and noise shall be adhered to, unless

otherwise approved by the Planning Director or City Engineer: a. Applicant shall designate a

"noise disturbance coordinator" who will be responsible for responding to any local

complaints about construction noise. Please submit contact information to the Planning

Division.

11. Prior to construction, and during installation of the new creek crossing, a representative from

the Colfax Todd’s Valley Consolidated Tribe (CTVCT) shall be contacted regarding the

pending construction activity. A representative from the CTVCT shall be available to monitor

any and all construction activity that occurs within the area from the new crossing to the flat

area (previously rough graded) of the project site. Monitoring shall occur only during ground

disturbance.

12. Flammable or combustible liquids or gasses shall not be used or stored on site.

13. Address and premise identification approved numbers shall be maintained on all buildings in

such a position as to be plainly visible and legible from the road or street fronting the property.













If the survey results are positive (active nests are found), impacts shall be avoided by the 

establishment of appropriate buffers.  The biologist shall consult with the California 

Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) and the City to determine the size of an appropriate 

buffer area (CDFW guidelines recommend implementation of 500-foot buffers).  Monitoring 

of the nest by a qualified biologist shall be required if the CDFW determines that the activity 

has the potential to adversely affect an active nest. 

If construction activities are scheduled to occur during the non-breeding season (September 

16 – January), a survey is not required and no further studies are necessary. 

43. The applicant shall obtain an Encroachment Permit for all improvements within the public 

right-of-way.  Applicant shall post a performance and labor bond and materials payment bond 

(or other equivalent financial security) in the amount of 100% of the cost of the improvements 

to be constructed in the public right-of-way as improvement security to ensure the faithful 

performance of all duties and obligations required of applicant in the construction of the 

improvements.  Such improvement security shall be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney.  

Such security shall be either a corporate surety bond, a letter of credit, or other instrument of 

credit issued by a banking institution subject to regulation by the State or Federal government 

and pledging that the funds necessary to carry out this Agreement are on deposit and 

guaranteed for payment, or a cash deposit made either directly with the City or deposited with 

a recognized escrow agent for the benefit of the City. 

 

44. The applicant shall have a sight distance study prepared to determine the visibility 

requirements for the turning movements onto Canyon Way when exiting the site. 

Recommendations from the report shall be incorporated into the improvements plans for 

approval by the City Engineer. 

    

End of Conditions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 















AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
YARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
50 FT. x 150 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV AND BOAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK / ACCESSIBLE ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADES

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAREHOUSE /

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOP SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADES

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADES

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
2260.000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2250.000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2240.000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2230.000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2220.000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2210.000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2200.000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2190.000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2180.000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2190.000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2180.000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2180.000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2190.000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2200.000

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARGE SHADE TREES 30` + DIAMETER  Acer r. `Autumn Flame` / Autumn Flame Red Maple 15 Gal, Medium Water Use 15 Gal, Medium Water Use Pistacia c. `Keith Davey` / Keith Davey Chinese Pistache 15 Gal, Low Water Use 15 Gal, Low Water Use Quercus ilex / Holly Oak 15 Gal, Low Water Use 15 Gal, Low Water Use Quercus rubra / Red Oak 15 Gal, Medium Water Use 15 Gal, Medium Water Use ACCENT TREES  Acer b. `Streetwise` / Streetwise Trident Maple 15 Gal, Medium Water Use 15 Gal, Medium Water Use Acer p. `Bloodgood` / Bloodgood Japanese Maple 15 Gal, Medium Water Use 15 Gal, Medium Water Use Acer palmatum / Japanese Maple 15 Gal, Medium Water Use 15 Gal, Medium Water Use Cercis c. `Forest Pansy` / Forest Pansy Redbud 15 Gal, Medium Water Use 15 Gal, Medium Water Use Cercis occidentalis / Western Redbud 15 Gal, Very Low Water Use 15 Gal, Very Low Water Use LARGE SHRUBS - 5` TALL +  Arbutus u. `Compacta` / Dwarf Strawberry Tree 5 Gal, Low Water Use 5 Gal, Low Water Use Calycanthus occidentalis / Spice Bush 5 Gal, Low Water Use 5 Gal, Low Water Use Carpenteria californica / Bush Anemone 5 Gal, Low Water Use 5 Gal, Low Water Use Heteromeles arbutifolia / Toyon 5 Gal, Low Water Use 5 Gal, Low Water Use MEDIUM SHRUBS - 3`-5` TALL  Abelia x g. `Kaleidoscope` / Kaleidoscope Glossy Abelia 5 Gal, Medium Water Use 5 Gal, Medium Water Use Arctostaphylos  x `Sunset` / Sunset Manzanita 5 Gal, Low Water Use 5 Gal, Low Water Use Buddleja d. `Nanho Blue` / Nanho Blue Butterfly Bush 5 Gal, Medium Water Use 5 Gal, Medium Water Use Euonymus f.  `Emerald `n Gold` / Emerald `n Gold Wintercreeper 5 Gal, Medium Water Use 5 Gal, Medium Water Use Ilex vomitoria / Yaupon Holly 5 Gal, Medium Water Use 5 Gal, Medium Water Use Salvia g. `Furmans Red` / Furman`s Red Salvia 5 Gal, Low Water Use 5 Gal, Low Water Use LOW SHRUBS - 2` OR LESS TALL  Arctostaphylos x `Pacific Mist` / Pacific Mist Manzanita 5 Gal, Medium Water Use 5 Gal, Medium Water Use Lavandula a. `Munstead` / Munstead English Lavender 1 Gal, Low Water Use 1 Gal, Low Water Use Rosa x `Meigalpio` / Red Drift Groundcover Rose 5 Gal, Medium Water Use 5 Gal, Medium Water Use Rosa x `Meizorland` / White Drift Rose 5 Gal, Medium Water Use 5 Gal, Medium Water Use Teucrium c. `Prostratum` / Prostrate Germander 5 Gal, Low Water Use 5 Gal, Low Water Use Westringia f. `Mundi` / Mundi Coast Rosemary 5 Gal, Low Water Use 5 Gal, Low Water Use TALL ACCENT SHRUBS  Muhlenbergia capillaris / Pink Muhly Grass 1 Gal, Low Water Use 1 Gal, Low Water Use Muhlenbergia rigens / Deer Grass 1 Gal, < Low Water Use1 Gal, < Low Water Use

AutoCAD SHX Text
Renewel Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 4169

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
Signature

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE SETBACKS SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS: 6` FROM PAVED SURFACES; 5` FROM POTABLE WATER  SYSTEM AND WATER METERS; 5` FROM JOINT  TRENCHES; 15` FROM STREET LIGHTS; 10` FROM  SANITARY SEWER LINES AND CULVERTS. ALL TREES PLANTED WITHIN THE REQUIRED  UNDERGROUND UTILITY SETBACKS OUTLINED ABOVE  SHALL RECEIVED LINEAR ROOT BARRIERS. 

Karen
Cloud+

Karen
Cloud+
DOES THIS WALL COME TOO CLOSE TO THE CREEK?

Karen
Cloud+

Karen
Cloud+
DO YOU WANT THIS WALL MOVED OVER AS SHOWN?





YT 

' 
-�.

J 

.,'i 

___ 
·· 

-�--E .. -

,._ _. 
I . '. ... ,.. ·· ;· •. .. .•. �- - I::·::.-. :.::

SEEllfWGlllrTllllf$FORl'fRJWl(NfC0.at 

-1

,._ 
•• 

.. 

----..,.-
-

:,,,. ........... .._ ..... ....... � ............. ro,. ·-"_ 
•-•-nl"-•""I• .,.,._..., .. _, 

.......... _ .. 
!

.. ..

• 

.. 

...,.._, -�··· 

'------... 

l
.t p 

... 

I 

==;-:: 
�· 

... 

�f 



s
--
·
·� .

J
-
: 

-....
� 

·
1,·

•.J·
·,, 

•
 

-
-

�
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
�

 

-
,

. 





http://www.colfax-ca.gov/


Osborn Development Project 

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING 
PROGRAM 

INTRODUCTION 

This section provides the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) for the City 

of Colfax Sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements project 

(Project), pursuant to Section 21081.6 of the California Public Resources Code and Section 

15097 of the CEQA Guidelines, which require that public agencies adopt a reporting and 

monitoring program for the changes made to the project or conditions of project approval, 

adopted in order to mitigate or avoid significant effects on the environment. A MMRP is 

required for the proposed project because the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

identified significant adverse impacts, and mitigation measures have been identified to 

reduce those impacts to less-than-significant levels. 

The Project consists of three components--(1) construction of a solar facility to offset energy 

consumption costs at the WWTP, (2) installation of a new aeration flotation system that would 

reduce algae contamination at the WWTP, and (3) upgrades to up to 4 miles of existing sewer 

pipelines, manholes and services. 

Adoption of the MMRP must occur prior to, or concurrently with, adoption of the project for 

which the program has been developed. 

PURPOSE OF THE MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

The purpose of the MMRP is to: 

Á Ensure that mitigation measures are implemented;

Á Provide feedback to agency staff and decision makers about the effectiveness of

mitigation measures;

Á Provide learning opportunities for improving mitigation measures on future projects;
and

Á Identify the need for enforcement action before irreversible environmental damage

occurs.

The components of the MMRP are addressed briefly below. 

Mitigation Measure: The mitigation measures are taken verbatim from the Initial Study 

prepared for the Project. The numbering of the individual mitigation measures follows the 

numbering sequence found in the Initial Study. 

Monitoring Agency: The City of Colfax will have ultimate and legal responsibility for 

implementation of all mitigation measures. This column indicates which department within 

the City will conduct the actual monitoring and reporting, as well as take corrective actions 

when a measure has not been properly implemented. 

Attachment 8

Implementation Schedule: Each action must take place during or prior to some part of 

project development or approval. 



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Osborn Development Project Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

December 2020 
 

Table 1 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 

Program 

Mitigation 
Measure 

Monitoring 
Agency 

Implementation 
Schedule 

    Monitoring / Compliance 

Record Name/ Date 

4. Biological Resources

MM 4a: Avoid Impacts to the Coast Horned Lizard. 
Prior to disturbance within the areas of the project area that contain suitable 
habitat for the species, a pre-construction survey for the species shall be 
conducted prior to any disturbance within those disturbed and developed areas 
of the project area in order to avoid direct impacts to the species. If the species 
is documented during pre-construction surveys, a qualified wildlife biologist 
would have the authority to move individual coast horned lizards outside of the 
proposed disturbance area(s) in order to avoid an impact to this species. Once 
the coast horned lizard(s) have been removed from the disturbance area(s) and 
out of harmôs way, the proposed work would no longer pose a risk to individuals 
of the species. 

Public 

Works 

Department 

If species is 

discovered or 

documented 

MM 4b: Avoid Impacts to Active Raptor and other Protected Bird Species 
Nests. 
Conduct a pre-construction ñnestingò survey within and adjacent to any proposed 
disturbance area within the project area for nesting raptors and other protected 
bird species within 14 days prior to disturbance. The nesting survey radius 
around the proposed disturbance would be identified prior to the implementation 
of the protected bird nesting surveys by a CDFW qualified biologist and would 
be based on the habitat type, habitat quality, and type of disturbance proposed 
within or adjacent to nesting habitat. 

If any nesting raptors or protected birds are identified during such pre-
construction surveys, trees or shrubs or grasslands with active nests should be 
not be removed or disturbed and a no- disturbance buffer should be established 
around the nesting site to avoid disturbance or destruction of the nest site until 
after the breeding season or after a qualified wildlife biologist determines that the 
young have fledged. The extent of these buffers would be determined by a 
CDFW qualified wildlife biologist and would depend on the special-status 
species present, the level of noise or construction disturbance, line of sight 
between the nest and the disturbance, ambient levels of noise and other 
disturbances, and other topographical or artificial barriers. 

Public 

Works 

Department 

If nesting birds 

found in study 

area 

Attachment 8







 Councilmember Fatula inquired about specific areas that could be used for before and after examples. 

 

 Mayor Pro Tem Lomen asked if there was any public comment on Item 9A. 

 

 The City Clerk confirmed no public comments were received. 

 
 No action was required for this item. 

 

3 AGENCY REPORTS ï continued 

 

Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce ï Andrea Harrison provided information about the upcoming 

Trunk-or-Treat event. 

 

3A.  Placer County Sheriff ï Ty Conners provided an update. 

 

 Councilmember Fatula requested an update on the Skate Park. 

 

 Ty Conners provided the current status for the project. 

 

 Sierra Vista Community Center ï Kim Douglass provided an update on happenings at the SVCC. 

 

4 PRESENTATION 

 

4A. Pioneer Energy ï Don Eckert presented a PowerPoint. 

 

 Public comment received from Jen Domenick Hamelin. 

 

 Pioneer Energy representative Sam Kang responded to Ms. Hamelinôs inquiry. 

 

 Councilmember Burruss also provided input. 

 

 Additional public comment received from Jen Domenick Hamelin. 

 

 Pioneer Energy representative Don Eckert provided a response to Ms. Hamelinôs inquiry. 
  

 Councilmember Burruss provided additional input. 

 

 Councilmember Douglass added information about how Pioneer Energy started. 

 
    * End of Presentation * 

  

Mayor Pro Tem Lomen requested to bring forward Item 9D. 

 

 Council Members Burruss and Fatula agreed to discuss Item 9D. 

 

9D. Letter to Placer County ï PCSO Contract Negotiations 

 Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Recommended Action: Discuss and provide direction to staff on the development of a letter to 

Placer County regarding the PCSO Contract Negotiations. 

 

 City Manager Heathcock provided information on the item and introduced Todd Leopold. 

 

































 Beginning 

Balance 

 Debit    

Revenues 

 Credit 

(Expenditures) 

 Ending     

Balance 
Fund Type:  1.11 - General Fund - Unassigned

Fund:  100 - General Fund 2,322,572.08$     172,518.23$        (169,844.84)$       2,325,245.47$     

Fund:  120 - Land Development Fees 83,391.62$          4,699.64$            (5,480.90)$           82,610.36$          

Fund:  570 - Garbage Fund (20,065.08)$         14,403.75$          -$                    (5,661.33)$           

Fund Type:  1.11 - General Fund - Unassigned 2,385,898.62$    191,621.62$       (175,325.74)$      2,402,194.50$     

Fund Type:  1.14 - General Fund - Restricted

Fund:  200 - Cannabis Application (10,660.51)$         406.00$               -$                    (10,254.51)$         

Fund:  205 - Escrow Funds 3,237.00$            -$                    -$                    3,237.00$            

Fund:  571 - AB939 Landfill Diversion 25,717.26$          -$                    -$                    25,717.26$          

Fund:  572 - Landfill Post Closure Maintenance 771,606.71$        21,023.29$          (3,241.62)$           789,388.38$        

Fund Type:  1.14 - General Fund - Restricted 789,900.46$       21,429.29$         (3,241.62)$          808,088.13$        

Fund Type:  1.24 - Special Rev Funds - Restricted

Fund:  201 - CARES Act Funding 23,766.56$          25,033.54$          -$                    48,800.10$          

Fund:  203 - CARES Act Funding - CDBG (445.00)$              -$                    -$                    (445.00)$              

Fund:  210 - Mitigation Fees - Roads 230,665.01$        465.06$               -$                    231,130.07$        

Fund:  211 - Mitigation Fees - Drainage 4,440.25$            9.00$                   -$                    4,449.25$            

Fund:  212 - Mitigation Fees - Trails 66,723.79$          134.88$               -$                    66,858.67$          

Fund:  213 - Mitigation Fees - Parks/Rec 143,646.16$        280.02$               (1,000.00)$           142,926.18$        

Fund:  214 - Mitigation Fees - City Bldgs 50,033.14$          100.08$               -$                    50,133.22$          

Fund:  215 - Mitigation Fees - Vehicles 10,444.03$          20.93$                 -$                    10,464.96$          

Fund:  217 - Mitigation Fees - DT Parking 31,746.25$          64.29$                 -$                    31,810.54$          

Fund:  218 - Support Law Enforcement (25,000.00)$         68,703.39$          -$                    43,703.39$          

Fund:  244 - CDBG  Program Inc - ME Lending 608.11$               -$                    -$                    608.11$               

Fund:  250 - Streets - Roads/Transportation (41,444.96)$         -$                    (16,115.58)$         (57,560.54)$         

Fund:  253 - Gas Taxes 12,530.69$          4,838.86$            (1,223.21)$           16,146.34$          

Fund:  258 - Road Maintenance - SB1/RSTBG 292,828.97$        4,375.88$            -$                    297,204.85$        

Fund:  270 - Beverage Container Recycling 18,975.55$          38.67$                 -$                    19,014.22$          

Fund:  280 - Oil Recycling 3,741.51$            7.63$                   -$                    3,749.14$            

Fund:  292 - Fire Department Capital Funds 90,262.56$          183.90$               -$                    90,446.46$          

Fund:  342 - Fire Construction - Mitigation 50,344.96$          99.50$                 -$                    50,444.46$          

Fund:  343 - Recreation Construction 50,345.43$          99.50$                 -$                    50,444.93$          

Fund Type:  1.24 - Special Rev Funds - Restricte 1,014,213.01$    104,455.13$       (18,338.79)$        1,100,329.35$     

Fund Type:  1.34 - Capital Projects - Restricted

Fund:  300 - FY2021 ADA Project (12,127.50)$         -$                    -$                    (12,127.50)$         

Fund:  357 - Culver Street Phase II -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Fund:  365 - Kneeland Street Imrpov (3,724.80)$           -$                    -$                    (3,724.80)$           

Fund:  367 - SB2 - Planning Grant (41,293.79)$         -$                    (4,479.08)$           (45,772.87)$         

Fund:  358 - CDBG Pavement (47,024.01)$         -$                    (27,219.93)$         (74,243.94)$         

Fund:  385 - Roundabout (79,155.99)$         79,155.99$          -$                    -$                    

Fund Type:  1.34 - Capital Projects - Restricted (183,326.09)$      79,155.99$         (31,699.01)$        (135,869.11)$       

Fund Type:  2.11 - Enterprise Funds 

Fund:  560 - Sewer 1,305,191.10$     95,208.31$          (299,665.49)$       1,100,733.92$     

Fund:  561 - Sewer Liftstations 276,982.31$        14,960.35$          (11,982.87)$         279,959.79$        

Fund:  563 - Wastewater Treatment Plant 1,358,157.33$     38,844.67$          (438,973.80)$       958,028.20$        

Fund:  564 - Sewer Connections 280,412.40$        -$                    (1,061.77)$           279,350.63$        

Fund:  567 - Inflow & Infiltration -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Fund:  573 - WWTP Planning Grant (78,479.91)$         -$                    (15,067.00)$         (93,546.91)$         

Fund:  574 - OES PSPS Grant 301,058.01$        613.38$               -$                    301,671.39$        

Fund:  585 - LS #5 Force Main Repairs (1,268.00)$           -$                    -$                    (1,268.00)$           

Fund Type:  2.11 - Enterprise Funds - Unassign 3,442,053.24$    149,626.71$       (766,750.93)$      2,824,929.02$     

Fund Type:  9.0 - CLEARING ACCOUNT

Fund:  998 - PAYROLL CLEARING FUND 999.96$               153.84$               -$                    1,153.80$            

Fund Type:  9.0 - CLEARING ACCOUNT 999.96$              153.84$              -$                   1,153.80$            

Grand Totals:  7,449,739.20$     546,442.58$        (995,356.09)$       7,000,825.69$     

City of Colfax

Cash Transactions Report - October 2020















  

City of Colfax Quarterly Investment Report ï Quarter Ended 09/30/2020 

Staff Report December 9, 2020 

  

Historically, due to fluctuations in fund balances, investment opportunities outside the corporate checking and 

LAIF accounts have been somewhat limited.  With several years of solid funding levels, the City staff has 

reviewed additional investment opportunities.  We have seriously considered the process of opening an account 

for some short-term Certificates of Deposit (CD) investments. In recent months, the rates for CDôs have 

dropped creating a narrow gap between the two investment options.  Staff will continue to review for 

opportunities, but at this time will continue with the current investment structure.   

 
Attachments: 

1. Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool 

2. State of California ï PMIA and LAIF Performance Report (QE 09/30/2020) 

3. State of California ï PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields 
4. Resolution 29-2014 

 

 







https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/comments.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/disclaimer.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/privacy.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/accessibility.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/unclaimed.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/sitemap.asp
http://get.adobe.com/reader/
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/public.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/careers/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/inside/directory.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/events-calendar.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia/contact.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/timedeposits/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/laif.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp














PCTPA Board of Directors
FY 2020/21 FINAL FINDINGS OF APPORTIONMENT
September 23, 2020
Page 2

financial outlook and provide insight on the financial recovery timeline in Placer County. The 
final FY 2020/21 LTF Apportionment contained in Attachment 1 assumes a combination of an
approximate $772,000 shortfall and a negative 17% reduction in revenue compared to FY 
2019/20. PCTPA and HDL will make a joint presentation at the September Board meeting
providing more details on LTF tax revenues and an overall assessment of the Placer County sales 
tax generation for each business sector. This presentation will also inform the FY 2020/21
Overall Work Program Amendment #1 scheduled for the October Board meeting. The proposed 
findings of apportionment were presented to the Technical Advisory Committee on September 
11, 2020. Like what was done in 2008-2009, staff will provide the Board a mid-ear update in 
January or February on the status of the Local Transportation Fund, along with any adjustments 
that need to be made.

AH:LM:ML:ss









99314.8 Allocation: 239,940$         

Placer County 5,410,141$      81.9% 196,451$   
Auburn 21,830$            0.3% 793$           
Colfax -$                  0.0% -$            
Lincoln -$                  0.0% -$            
Loomis -$                  0.0% -$            
Rocklin -$                  0.0% -$            
Roseville 1,175,827$      17.8% 42,696$      

Source: (1) 2020/2021 State Transit Assistance Allocation Revised Estimate, California 
State Controller Division of Accounting and Reporting, August 1, 2020.

95



Placer County Transportation Planning Agency  5  Revised August 2020 

 

Transit Operating Expenses: enter text. +  

Capital Purchases/Reserves: enter text. = LTF spent in most 

Subtotal: enter text. π recent fiscal year 

Federal Revenues: enter text. = cannot exceed 

STA Revenues: enter text. π result below. 

Total: enter text. * 0.5= enter text.

 

8.   Is there a prohibition on the employment of partπtime drivers or on contracting 

with common carriers? 

ἦ YES 

ἦ NO (Explain)  Click or tap here to enter text. 
 
9.   Are STA funds being used for transit operating purposes? 

ἦ YES (see below) 

ἦ NO  
 

If STA funds are being used for transit operating purposes, indicate which 

efficiency standard was met. In calculating the operating cost, operators 

may exclude costs that exceed prior year costs, as adjusted by the CPI. 

Notes: (1) Use the STA Qualifying Criteria worksheet contained in the TDA 

Claim workbook to determine eligible exclusions. (2) These items may also 

be excluded when computing the farebox recovery ratio. (3) You may refer 

to operating cost figures from TDA fiscal audits for the applicable fiscal year. 

 

Efficiency Standard #1:  ἦ Yes     ἦ No2 
 

Efficiency Standard #2:  ἦ Yes     ἦ No2 
 
If neither efficiency standard was met, list the percentage of STA Funding limited to: 

Capital Expenditures: Enter %% Operating Expenditures: Enter %.% 
 

10. Describe or attach current fare structure: 
Click or tap here to enter text. 

 

11. Attach copy of latest CHP terminal inspection report. 

 
12. Each transit claimant must report on efforts to implement recommendations included in 

the FY 2015/16 through FY 2017/18 triennial performance audit, which was completed in 
2019 (attach additional pages as necessary). 

       Click or tap here to enter text. 
 
2Assembly Bill 90, 2019π20 [Reg. Session] temporarily prohibits the penalty for nonπcompliance with required STA efficiency standards 

during FY 2019π20 and 2020π21. The claimant should still identify whether the standards was met.





Placer County Transportation Planning Agency  4  Revised August 2020 

1Assembly Bill 90, 2019π20 [Reg. Session] temporarily prohibits the penalty for nonπcompliance with farebox recovery ratio requirement 

during FY 2019π20 and 2020π21. The claimant should still identify whether the requirement was met.





-$  

-$  

-$  

-$  

-$  

-$  

-$  

-$  

-$  

-$  

12,410.00$  

-$  

-$  

-$  

-$  

-$  

-$  

-$  

-$  

-$  

12,410.00$  

3,948.00$  

II. FY 2019/20 PROJECTED EXPENSES & USES

I. Personnel

1. Administrative Salaries and Wages

8. Miscellaneous

L. Other Uses:

7. Purchased Transit Services

9. Interest

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

M. TOTAL FY 2019/20 EXPENSES & USES (I+J+K+L)

N. Estimated Deferred Revenue as of June 30, 2020 (H-M)

K. Capital Assets (Itemize)

4. Vehicle Materials & Supplies

5. Utilities

6. Insurance

     Capital Outlay Reserve Contribution (CCR 6648)

2. Operating Salaries and Wages

3. Other Salaries and Wages

4. Fringe Benefits

J. Services and Supplies

1. Professional Services

10. Leases & Rentals

2. Maintenance Services

3. Other Services

100

















Placer County Transportation Planning Agency   Revised August 2020 
 

TDA ANNUAL PROJECT AND FINANCIAL PLAN 
 
This form will show the planned expenditures of all TDA funds claimed for the fiscal year in addition to 
any TDA funds carried over from previous years. Briefly describe all operational, capital and/or streets 
and roads projects which will be funded by TDA moneys. Please show BOTH prior year TDA funds (if 
any) and current year TDA funds to be used, provide the total cost of each project, and indicate all 
other sources of funding associated with each project. For capital projects, the projects listed and their 
associated costs and funding sources should be consistent with the budget developed in the TDA Claim 
Worksheet completed for the submittal of this claim. The total project cost and total funding source(s) 
listed below should balance for each project. See attached sample plan for additional guidance. 
 

Claimant:  City of Colfax 
 
Fiscal Year: FY 2020/21 
 

Brief Project Description Project Cost Source of Funding & Amount 
 
TDA Streets & Roads 
 
Roadway maintenance, construction 
and related equipment 

 
Streets & Roads Operating Expenses 
per Adopted Budget FY 2020π2021 = 
$239,258 

LTF                        $   93,867 
Gas Tax                 $  38,950 
Fund Transfer      $106,441 

 
Public Transit with Placer County 

 
Placer County Transit Services FY2020π
2021 = $13,179 will be offset by a 
credit from the CARES FTA 5311 Act to 
reduce costs to $0 for the fiscal year. 

Deferred revenue 06/30/20  $ 3,948 
STA FY 2020π2021                    $ 8,317 
 
Anticipated Deferred at 06/30/20 =  
$12,265 

  









 
 
 

Exhibit C 

Commuter Bus Service 
 

Operates on Monday through Friday only 
 

Does not operate on New Yearôs Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day,  
Presidentôs Day, Cesar Chavez Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, 

Columbus Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving and Day After, and Christmas Day 
 
 

Placer Commuter Express Bus Schedule - Effective May 27, 2008 
 Morning Departures - AM  Evening Departures - PM 

 
Bus 

1 
Bus 

2 
Bus 

3 
Bus 

4   
Bus 

1 
Bus 

2 
Bus 

3 
Bus 

4 

Colfax Depot - Main St 5:20 5:40 6:23 ****  J St. & 4th St. 4:17 4:22 4:32 5:15 

Clipper Gap Park 'n' Ride 5:32 5:52 6:35 ****  J St. & 8th St. 4:19 4:24 4:34 5:17 

Auburn Station - Nevada St 5:43 6:03 **** 6:37  J St. & 11 St. 4:21 4:26 4:36 5:19 

Penryn Park 'n' Ride 5:55 6:15 6:50 ****  15th St. & K St. 4:24 4:29 4:39 5:22 

Loomis Station  
- Taylor/Horseshoe Bar 5:59 6:19 **** 6:53  15th St. & N St. 4:25 4:30 4:40 5:23 

Rocklin Station  
- Pacific St/Rocklin Rd 6:06 6:26 **** 7:00  P St. & 13th St. 4:27 4:32 4:42 5:25 

Roseville - Taylor Rd Park 'n' 
Ride next to Sunsplash 6:15 6:35 7:00 ****  P St. & 9th St. 4:30 4:35 4:45 5:28 

**** Buses 3 and 4 depart from select bus stops only.  P St. & 5th St. 4:32 4:37 4:47 5:30 

           

 Morning Arrivals - AM   Evening Arrivals - PM 

J St. & 4th St. 6:50 7:10 7:40 7:40  
Roseville - Taylor Rd Park 'n' 
Ride next to Sunsplash 5:12 **** 5:27 6:10 

J St. & 8th St. 6:51 7:11 7:41 7:41  
Rocklin Station  
- Pacific St/Rocklin Rd **** 5:17 5:35 6:18 

J St. & 11 St. 6:52 7:12 7:42 7:42  
Loomis Station  
- Taylor/Horseshoe Bar **** 5:24 5:42 6:25 

15th St. & K St. 6:55 7:15 7:45 7:45  Penryn Park 'n' Ride 5:24 **** 5:49 6:32 

15th St. & N St. 6:56 7:16 7:46 7:46  Auburn Station - Nevada St **** 5:40 6:00 6:43 

P St. & 13th St. 6:57 7:17 7:47 7:47  Clipper Gap Park 'n' Ride 5:39 **** 6:12 6:55 

P St. & 9th St. 6:58 7:18 7:48 7:48  Colfax Depot - Main St 5:51 **** 6:24 7:07 

P St. & 5th St. 7:00 7:20 7:50 7:50  **** Buses 1 and 2 return to select bus stops only. 

 
  















119















































mailto:Aaron.Arriaga@HoltRenewables.com




mailto:Robert.helms@holtrenewables.com










City of Colfax Design/Build Solar System  

for The Cityôs Wastewater Treatment Facility 

 
 

8 

 

module mounting height and ground albedo, the efficiency could be closer 23.1%. At the end of 30 years, the 

panels are warranted to produce no less than 84.95% of their initial labeled power. Canadian Solar has a very 

substantial presence as one of the worldôs leading module manufacturers, being recognized by both Bloomberg 

NEF as a Tier 1 module manufacturer, as well as being rated óAAô by PVTech Research on 

the PVModuleTech Bankability Ratings, one of only five manufacturers to secure that rating.  

 

d. Inverters  

 

In addition to the modules being considered for the City of Colfax Wastewater Treatment Plant, the 

inverter solution being considered is Canadian Solarôs CSI-125KTL-GS-E transformer-less, utility-

scale inverters with a rated power output of 125kWAC, which has an AC output voltage at 600V, 3Ø. 

The Canadian Solar CSI-125KTL-GS-E inverter has integrated AC and DC load 

rated switches, (1) MPPT, and has a protection degree of NEMA 4X. While the inverter has 1 MPPT present, 

Canadian Solarôs inverter offering has (20) DC inputs, which allows each string to connect directly to the 

inverter in lieu of having an external DC combiner that would combine all the inverter strings and terminate on 

(1) DC input. Additionally, the inverter has a CEC efficiency of 98.6% and is UL-1741-SA and Rule 21 

listed and has a (10) year warranty that is extendable up to (20) years. 

   

e. Fixed Tilt Arrays  

 

The racking manufacturer considered for the City of Colfax WWTP solar project is AP Alternatives. AP 

Alternatives offers a solution that utilize modules in a two-in portrait orientation. Due to the ground conditions 

(bed rock) on site AP Alternatives utilizes shallow ground screws. AP ground screws are a dual post design 

allowing for a shallow embedment depth which make it an ideal choice for the solid ground conditions just 

below the surface at the Colfax site. Modules are attached to the galvanized purlins that comply with UL2703 

for integrated grounding and bonding. AP Alternatives offers a 25-year limited warranty on their ground mount 

solution. AP Alternatives was founded in 2009 allowing it to become a leader in the commercial design-build 

specialty structures market. The in-house engineers, along with company owned equipment and manufacturing 

facilities located in the United States, allow AP Alternatives to provide a quality product with reduced lead 

times. 
** Note, racking is subject to onsite pull testing 

 

f. Performance Monitoring and Energy Service  

 

The solar photovoltaic system proposed for the City of Colfax WWTP solar project will 

use AlsoEnergyôs PowerTrack software to provide performance monitoring to the system owner. Holt 

Renewables uses this software on all commercial projects with demand and production monitoring and is 

extremely familiar with its interface and hardware. The package provides broad support for automated 

monitoring and complex performance analysis of solar installations. AlsoEnergy provides design support as 

part of their service and interacts in a timely fashion during installation.  This monitoring system will utilize a 

cell modem connection for optimal connectivity and uptime given the location of the site.  

 

g. Interconnection Proposal  

 

Finally, the system is intended to be interconnected on the line side of Service Switchboard ï SSBD. While 

Addendum 2 issued on August 24th indicated that a load side connection were to be assumed, this assumption 

is problematic for a few reasons. First, a new relay system would have to integrate with the existing generator 

on site and the proposed solar array. This would be to ensure that when the generator is activated due to loss of 

power from the utility, the solar array is also disconnected. This would be recommended given that the inverters 

of the solar array will try to match the frequency and voltage characteristics of the grid it is tied to; in the event 

the utility grid goes down, the inverters will then try to match the frequency and voltage of the generator 

present, which will be seen as a new ógridô, and is a much less stable reference that the utility grid itself. 

Without a relay scheme in place to disconnect the solar from the switchboard, the inverters risk possible 

damage when trying to synchronize with the generator.   

Attachment 2 Item 6H







City of Colfax Design/Build Solar System  

for The Cityôs Wastewater Treatment Facility 

 
 

11 

 

h. Operation and Maintenance 

 

O&M Maintenance Plan: 

 

For the duration of the term, initializing at the contract signing date, unless otherwise terminated by 

either party, LEI recommends one site visit per year to include at a minimum: 

 

1. Visual inspection of site and system general conditions  

2. Site conditions 

3. System Grounding 

4. Conduits 

5. Drainage 

6. Racking 

a. Torque checks on racking hardware for 10% of the system 

b. Systemic failures in the sample size will require a full system check 

c. Proper grounding 

7. Modules 

a. Inspection for damaged modules 

b. Shattered glass after thermal contraction and expansion 

c. Hot spots, burned cells 

d. Micro-cracks  

e. Vandalism or other external damages 

8. Inverters 

a. Check terminations for DC and AC wiring 

b. Clean fan vents  

c. Any additional routine maintenance as suggested by the original 

equipment manufacturer (OEM) 

d. Check for rodent infestations 

e. Check conduit fittings and attachments as applicable 

9. Circuit / string health 

a. Anomalies noted in project logs 

b. Test Voc and Imp with a hand-held meter and note findings 

10. A report of the site visit and findings will be generated for the customer 

11. Optional services including but not limited to module washing will be 

scheduled with the customer and included in the report 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 2 Item 6H





City of Colfax Design/Build Solar System  

for The Cityôs Wastewater Treatment Facility 

 
 

13 

 

Panel Area 
 

Solar Panel Site Alternative 1 

 

 
 

*** A detailed construction schedule, structural and electrical layout can be found in the ñDesign/Build cost 

Proposalò package*** 

 

 

 

Attachment 2 Item 6H





Aaron.Arriaga
Text Box

Aaron.Arriaga
Text Box
MWh





mailto:ziggy.ruiz@holtrenewables.com


























mailto:Aaron.Arriaga@HoltRenewables.com




City of Colfax Design/Build Solar System  

for The Cityôs Wastewater Treatment Facility 

 
 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Part A: Engineering Design & Coordination 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 2 Item 6H



AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:  PHASE: COPYRIGHT: SCALE: SHEET SIZE: SHEET TITLE: SHEET NO: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARK   DATE				DESCRIPTION 										 DRAWN 	 CHK'DDESCRIPTION 										 DRAWN 	 CHK'D DRAWN 	 CHK'D CHK'D



STAMP:         

PR
OJ

EC
T:

1301 Cap. O TX Hwy S #B315
Austin, TX 78746

www.holtrenewables.com

C:
\U
se
rs\
jak

e.p
arz

\D
es
kto

p\c
olf
ax
 10

.19
.20

20
\03

 - d
es
ign

\3.
3 d

raw
ing

s\0
00
_v
2_
cu
rre

nt 
tem

pla
te\
v2
_c
urr

en
t te

mp
lat
e\3

.32
 S
he
ets

\W
I10

1 S
ITE

 P
LA

N.
dw

g  
11
/23

/20
 - 5

:29
pm

CI
TY
 O
F 
CO
LF
AX

CO
LF
AX

 W
W
TP

 S
OL

AR
 P
RO

JE
CT

48
0.7

4 k
W
 D
C 
ST

C 
RA

TI
NG

GR
AN

D 
VI
EW

 W
AY

CO
LF
AX

, C
A 
95
71
3

1 2 3 4 5 6

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6

E

D

C

B

A
 

BID
HoltRenewables, 2020

AS NOTED
ANSI D - 22X34

   J
   

   H
   

   G
   

   F
   

   E
   

   D
  1
1.1

1.2
02
0

   C
  1
0.2

0.2
02
0

   B
  0
8.1

9.2
02
0

   A
  0
8.1

0.2
02
0

     JN
P

JN
P

JN
P

JN
P

     RE
DE

SI
GN

 F
OR

 S
OL

AR
 P
AN

EL
 S
IT
E 
AL

T.
 1

SL
D 
RE

VI
SI
ON

 - 
FU

TU
RE

 E
SS

 IN
TE

GR
AT

IO
N

RE
-IS

SU
E 
FO

R 
PR

IC
IN
G

IS
SU

E 
FO

R 
PR

IC
IN
G

     AM
D

AM
D

AM
D

AM
D

CL
IE
NT

:

FOR REVIEW ONLY

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

GENERAL SHEET NOTES
1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE APPROXIMATE AND MUST BE FIELD

VERIFIED.

2. CONDUIT AND PULL BOXES SHALL BE INSTALLED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOLLOWING CEC ARTICLES: 342.26
FOR IMC, 344.26 FOR RMC, 352.26 FOR PVC, 353.26 FOR
HDPE, 358.26 FOR EMT CONDUIT, AND 314.28-314.30 FOR
PULLBOXES.

SHEET KEYNOTES
1. INVERTERS AND OTHER PV EQUIPMENT AT ARRAY SHALL BE

PILE MOUNTED.

2. TREES TO BE REMOVED. FIELD VERIFY EXACT LOCATION
AND QUANTITY.

3. PV STEP DOWN TRANSFORMER NEAR INTERCONNECTION TO
BE PAD MOUNTED. DISCONNECTS TO BE RACK MOUNTED.

4. UNDERGROUND CONDUIT ROUTING FROM AC PANELBOARD
AT ARRAY TO PV XFMR SERVICE DISCONNECT 02 TO BE
COORDINATED WITH EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

SITE PLAN

WI101

SCALE: 1" = 40'-0"
SITE PLANA1

TRUE
NORTH

SCALE: NTS
SITE PLAN - SUMMARYD4

PV SOLAR SYSTEM SUMMARY

(TOTAL MODULE COUNT) MODULE MANF. & MODEL
NUMBER / STC DC RATING

(1118) CANADIAN SOLAR 430W CS3W-430MB-AG, OAE

TOTAL STRINGS OF MODULES PER STRING 43 STRINGS OF 26 MODULES
PV ARRAY RACKING STYLE / MANUFACTURER AND MODEL FIXED TILT GROUND MOUNT / APA RACKING, OAE
TOTAL STC DC SYSTEM SIZE 480.74 kW
(TOTAL INVERTER COUNT) INVERTER MANF. AND MODEL (3) CANADIAN SOLAR CSI-125-KTL-GS-E, OAE
INVERTER CEC EFFICIENCY 98.6% (125kW)
SITE LATITUDE 39Á04'58.4"N 120Á56'15.4"W
ARRAY AZIMUTH / MODULE TILT 180Á/ 20Á
ASHRAE DESIGN TEMPERATURE EXTREME MIN. / 2% HIGH -8ÁC/28ÁC
INTERCONNECTION VOLTAGE 480 VAC 3ʎ
INTERCONNECTION OCPD RATING 800A
INTERCONNECTION TYPE TAP

UNDERGROUND
AC CONDUIT RUN
APPROX. 320'-0"

PV ARRAY 01
(1118) MODULES

(3) 125kW INVERTERS
(FIXED TILT GROUND MOUNT)

PV EQUIPMENT AT INTERCONNECTION
(1) PV XFMR SERVICE DISCONNECT (ACD.02)
(1) AC PANELBOARD, POCC (ACP.01)
(1) PV UTILITY DISCONNECT (ACD.01)
(RACK MOUNTED)
(1) PV XFMR
(PAD MOUNTED)

2

NEW FENCE
APPROX. 1000'-0"

SETBACK FROM
FENCE: 10'-0"

INV.01 AC PANELBOARD (ACP.01) 1

3

4

POINT OF INTERCONNECTION
TAP AHEAD OF 800A MAIN BREAKER IN
EXISTING SWITCHGEAR

INV.02

INV.03

1

1

1

APE LIMIT

Attachment 2 Item 6H

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text
B R U S H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WL 2122.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
P O N D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text
T R E E S  A N D  B R U S H

AutoCAD SHX Text
2240

AutoCAD SHX Text
2230

AutoCAD SHX Text
2220

AutoCAD SHX Text
2210

AutoCAD SHX Text
2180

AutoCAD SHX Text
2170

AutoCAD SHX Text
2200

AutoCAD SHX Text
2190

AutoCAD SHX Text
2180

AutoCAD SHX Text
2160

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2170

AutoCAD SHX Text
2160

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
 E 6862800

AutoCAD SHX Text
 E 6863200

AutoCAD SHX Text
 E 6863600

AutoCAD SHX Text
B R U S H

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
B R U S H

AutoCAD SHX Text
B R U S H

AutoCAD SHX Text
B R U S H

AutoCAD SHX Text
B R U S H

AutoCAD SHX Text
B R U S H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WL 2122.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
P O N D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P O N D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WL 2137.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2123.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2123.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2124.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2129.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2128.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2127.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2131.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2129.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2132.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2139.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2144.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2143.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2143.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2146.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2148.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
PILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2142.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2240

AutoCAD SHX Text
2235

AutoCAD SHX Text
2230

AutoCAD SHX Text
2225

AutoCAD SHX Text
2220

AutoCAD SHX Text
2215

AutoCAD SHX Text
2210

AutoCAD SHX Text
2205

AutoCAD SHX Text
2200

AutoCAD SHX Text
2195

AutoCAD SHX Text
2190

AutoCAD SHX Text
2185

AutoCAD SHX Text
2125

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2135

AutoCAD SHX Text
2125

AutoCAD SHX Text
2170

AutoCAD SHX Text
2155

AutoCAD SHX Text
2160

AutoCAD SHX Text
2165

AutoCAD SHX Text
2170

AutoCAD SHX Text
2155

AutoCAD SHX Text
2190

AutoCAD SHX Text
2195

AutoCAD SHX Text
2185

AutoCAD SHX Text
2180

AutoCAD SHX Text
2135

AutoCAD SHX Text
2135

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2155

AutoCAD SHX Text
2155

AutoCAD SHX Text
2160

AutoCAD SHX Text
2165

AutoCAD SHX Text
2170

AutoCAD SHX Text
2175

AutoCAD SHX Text
2160

AutoCAD SHX Text
2165

AutoCAD SHX Text
2170

AutoCAD SHX Text
2175

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145

AutoCAD SHX Text
2135

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2125

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2165

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2165

AutoCAD SHX Text
2160

AutoCAD SHX Text
2155

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145

AutoCAD SHX Text
2180

AutoCAD SHX Text
2175

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:  PHASE: COPYRIGHT: SCALE: SHEET SIZE: SHEET TITLE: SHEET NO: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARK   DATE				DESCRIPTION 										 DRAWN 	 CHK'DDESCRIPTION 										 DRAWN 	 CHK'D DRAWN 	 CHK'D CHK'D



AutoCAD SHX Text
T R E E S  A N D  B R U S H

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
 E 6863200

AutoCAD SHX Text
2131.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2129.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2132.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2190

AutoCAD SHX Text
2195

AutoCAD SHX Text
2185

AutoCAD SHX Text
2180

AutoCAD SHX Text
2135

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2155

AutoCAD SHX Text
2160

AutoCAD SHX Text
2165

AutoCAD SHX Text
2170

AutoCAD SHX Text
2175

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:  PHASE: COPYRIGHT: SCALE: SHEET SIZE: SHEET TITLE: SHEET NO: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARK   DATE				DESCRIPTION 										 DRAWN 	 CHK'DDESCRIPTION 										 DRAWN 	 CHK'D DRAWN 	 CHK'D CHK'D



AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:  PHASE: COPYRIGHT: SCALE: SHEET SIZE: SHEET TITLE: SHEET NO: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARK   DATE				DESCRIPTION 										 DRAWN 	 CHK'DDESCRIPTION 										 DRAWN 	 CHK'D DRAWN 	 CHK'D CHK'D





























Colfax Solar Design/Build Contract  Page 7 of 11 

finished and unfinished reports, plans, studies, documents and other writings prepared by and for 

Contractor, its officers, employees and agents in the course of performing the Services shall become 

the sole property of the City upon payment to Contractor for the Services, and the City shall have the 

exclusive right to use such materials in its sole discretion without further compensation to Contractor 

or to any other party.  Contractor shall, at Contractorôs expense, provide such reports, plans, studies, 

documents and writings to City or any party the City may designate, upon written request.  Contractor 

may keep file copies of all documents prepared for City.  Use of any such documents by the City for 

projects that are not the subject of this Agreement or for purposes beyond the scope of the Services 

shall be at the Cityôs sole risk without legal liability or expense to Contractor. 

 

Section 15.  Changes and/or Extra Work. 

 

Only the City Council may authorize extra and/or changed Services, modification of the time of 

completion of the Services, or additional compensation for the tasks to be performed by Contractor. 

Contractor expressly recognizes that other City personnel are without authorization to order extra 

and/or changed Services or to obligate the City to the payment of additional compensation.  The 

failure of Contractor to secure the prior written authorization for such extra and/or changed Services 

shall constitute a waiver of any and all right to adjustment in the contract price due to such 

unauthorized Services, and Contractor thereafter shall not be entitled to any compensation whatsoever 

for the performance of such extra or changed Services.  In the event Contractor and City agree that 

extra and/or changed Services are required, or that additional compensation shall be awarded to 

Contractor for performance of the Services under this Agreement, a supplemental agreement 

providing for such compensation shall be prepared and shall be executed by the Contractor and the 

necessary City officials before the extra and/or changed Services are provided. 

 

Section 16.  Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws. 

 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules 

and regulations affecting the Services, including without limitation laws requiring licensing and 

prohibiting discrimination in employment because of race, creed, color, sex, age, marital status, 

physical or mental disability, national origin or other prohibited bases.  City shall not be responsible 

or liable for Contractorôs failure to comply with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules or 

regulations. 

 

Section 17.  Retention of Records. 

 

Contractor and any subcontractors authorized by the terms of this Agreement shall keep and maintain 

full and complete documentation and accounting records, employeesô time sheets, and 

correspondence pertaining to the Services, and Contractor shall make such documents available for 

review and/or audit by City and Cityôs representatives at all reasonable times during performance of 

the Services and for at least four (4) years after completion of the Services and/or termination of this 

Agreement. 

 

Section 18.  Alternative Dispute Resolution 

A.     Before resorting to mediation, arbitration or other legal process, the primary contacts of the 

parties shall meet and confer and attempt to amicably resolve any dispute arising from or 

Item 6H









Colfax Solar Design/Build Contract  Page 11 of 11 

 

 

CITY       CONTRACTOR 

 

Signature     Signature    

 

Printed Name     Printed Name    

 

Title       Title     

 

Date       Date     

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

       

City Attorney 

Item 6H







_________________________________________________________________________________________  
City of Colfax Establishment of Green Zones for the Green Means Go Pilot 

Project Resolution __-2020 

 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № __-2020 
 

ESTABLISHING GREEN ZONES FOR THE GREEN MEANS GO PILOT PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Colfax is a member of the Sacramento Area Council of Governments; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the region faces an ambitious state-mandated per capita greenhouse gas reduction target of 

19 percent by 2035 for the Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy 

(MTP/SCS), adopted November 18, 2019; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Colfax is committed to helping the Sacramento region meet its 19 percent 

greenhouse gas reduction target by facilitating more housing and transportation choices and advancing 

economic prosperity; and, 

 

WHEREAS, SACOG and its member local governments must work in partnership with the state in order 

to support housing and transportation projects that will help the region and the state achieve our 

environmental goals; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Green Means Go pilot project will be a meaningful and measurable effort to catalyze 

and advance projects and programs that accelerate infill housing, travel options, and electric vehicle 

deployment in targeted areas, called Green Zones; and, 

 

WHEREAS, SACOG has recognized rural communities in unincorporated counties face different 

challenges and are often intentionally not planned for significant new growth and will consider 

alternative factors that can inform the designation of Green Zones in rural communities.   

 

WHEREAS, SACOG understands that funding and priorities can change over time and will allow 

amendments to the Green Zones on an as-needed basis following discussions with local agency staff and 

at the discretion of the SACOG Executive Director 

 

WHEREAS SACOG has reviewed nominated Green Zones within City of Colfax and has accepted 

those nominations as having met the Green Means Go Green Zone eligibility requirements 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Colfax hereby: 

 

1) Affirms its commitment to helping the State of California and the SACOG region reach its current 

19 percent greenhouse gas reduction goal through implementation of the Green Means Go pilot 

project. 
 

2) Adopts the Green Zones as illustrated in Exhibit A and more particularly described in Exhibit B, 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

3) Authorizes the City Manager to propose amendments to the SACOG Executive Director   

 









  

City of Colfax Cintas Uniform Agreement 

Staff Report December 9, 2020 

  

 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

 

The 5-year agreement with Cintas costs are accounted for based on the labor allocation from various funds. The 

total agreement cost is $32,461 over a 5-year term, which includes a 10% contingency for replacement 

garments.  

 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution  __-2020 

2. Cintas Agreement 

 











































Where are we Expanding to?

2



Key Assumptions for Impact Assessment

u Prospective account stats sourced from 2018-2019 PG&E Item16 data 

u Service set to commence in January 2022 for new communities

u 10% opt-out assumption utilized for prospective new communities

u Current market conditions and Pioneer rates maintained through FYE 2025

3









Base Case ð Projected Reserves

7





Stress Test #2 ð Increased Power Supply Costs (20%)

Current Expansion

9



Stress Test #3 ð Decreased Revenue 

(7% drop in current rates to stay competitive)

Current Expansion

10 231







November 

9th

By December 

31st

December 

17th

November

17th/19th

November 

10th/16th

December 

8th/9th

Amended 

Implementation 

Plan filed with 

CPUC

Auburn Council Rocklin Council

Lincoln Council

Colfax Council  

Placer Co. Board 

of Supervisors

Loomis Council

Pioneer Board 

votes on 

amended JPA and 

amended 

Implementation 

Plan 

El Dorado Board of Supervisors

Placerville Council

Draft Timeline

13





mailto:Don.Eckert@pioneercommunityenergy.ca.gov
mailto:SamK@pioneercommunityenergy.ca.gov


City of Colfax Second Amendment to the Digital Billboard Sign and 

Relocation Agreement with Sierra Property Development Staff Report December 9, 2020 

Staff Report to City Council 

FOR THE DECEMBER 9, 2020 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Alfred A. “Mick” Cabral, City Attorney 

Subject: Second Amendment to Digital Billboard Sign And Relocation Agreement with 

Sierra Property Development 
  Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   ã Funded:  Un-funded: Amount:  Fund(s):  

Summary/Background 

Effective February 12, 2013, the City and SPD entered into a Digital Billboard Sign and Relocation Agreement 

(the “Agreement”) which allowed SPD to replace two static billboard faces at 1534 S. Canyon Way with digital 

sign faces and two static billboard faces at 962 S. Canyon Way with two digital sign faces. The Agreement 

required all four digital sign faces to be installed no later than February 12, 2018.  

SPD timely replaced the two static billboards with digital sign faces at 962 S. Canyon Way. Unanticipated 

changes in market conditions rendered construction of the third and fourth Digital Sign Faces at 1534 S. Canyon 

Way economically unfeasible. At SPD’s request, effective November 1, 2017 the Council adopted its 

Resolution 47-2017 whereby the deadline for construction of the third and fourth digital sign faces was 

extended to December 31, 2020.   

Market conditions still do not justify installing the third and fourth digital sign faces because there is inadequate 

demand for digital advertising space. As a result, SPD is requesting an additional two-year extension of the 

deadline for installing the third and fourth digital sign faces. If the Council approves the extension, SPD will be 

allowed to and including December 31, 2022 to complete installation of the third and fourth digital sign faces at 

1534 S. Canyon Way. This will be memorialized in a second amendment to the Agreement.   

Staff recommends that the Council approve the extension as requested.  

Staff will be available to answer any questions and provide additional information. 

Fiscal Impacts 

None 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution __-2020

2. Second Amendment to the Digital Billboard Sign and Relocation Agreement

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and consider adopting Resolution __-2020 authorizing the City 

Manager to execute the Second Amendment to the Digital Billboard Sign and Relocation Agreement with 
Sierra Property Development. 



_________________________________________________________________________________________  
City of Colfax Second Amendment to the Digital Billboard Sign and 

Relocation Agreement with Sierra Property Development Resolution __-2020 

 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № __-2020 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE DIGITAL 

BILLBOARD SIGN AND RELOCATION AGREEMENT WITH SIERRA PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 

 

WHEREAS, Sierra Property Development (“SPD”) is operating four billboard sign faces, two of which 

are located at 1534 S. Canyon Way and two at 962 S. Canyon Way; and, 

 

WHEREAS, effective February 12, 2013, the City and SPD entered a Digital Billboard Sign And 

Relocation Agreement that permitted, among other things, SPD to replace its existing static billboard faces with 

digital sign faces at both locations no later than February 12, 2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, SPD timely replaced the two static billboard faces with digital sign faces at 962 S. Canyon 

Way; and, 

 

WHEREAS, changed market conditions rendered unfeasible replacement of the two static billboards 

with digital sign faces at 1534 S. Canyon Way within the time originally allowed; and  

 

WHEREAS, effective November 1, 2017, the City and SPD executed the First Amendment To Digital 

Billboard Sign And Relocation Agreement whereby the deadline for SPD to replace the two static billboard 

faces at 1534 S. Canyon Way with digital sign faces was extended to December 31, 2020; and   

 

WHEREAS, SPD requested an additional extension of the deadline to replace the two static billboard 

faces at 1534 S. Canyon Way with digital sign faces from December 31, 2020 to December 31, 2022; and   

 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to extend the deadline as SPD requested.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax that the City 

Manager is authorized on behalf of the City to execute the Second Amendment to Digital Billboard Sign and 

Relocation Agreement with Sierra Property Development.  

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the regular 

meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 9th of December 2020 by the following vote of the 

Council: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:  

________________________________________ 

     Marnie Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________________ 

     Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

















































r, 

262



























ll 
!...

h 





277













  

City of Colfax Colfax Volunteer Fire Department Fleet and Merger Update 

Staff Report December 9, 2020 

  

USDA is dated and could be updated if the City conducted an income survey (at City expense) ï and could go 

up to as high as 55% of cost.  The USDA representative indicated that most grants are in the $30,000 - $50,000 

range.  All grant funding is dependent on USDA annual budget and it is not anticipated before January 2021.  

Staff intends to pursue the cost of a City wide income survey for consideration as it may benefit the City in 

other funding opportunities also. 

 

Recommendation 
 

Staff recommends that decisions to be made regarding capital purchases should address all of the considerations 

listed above so that we have a complete review and basis for making critical decisions.  In addition, Council has 

previously requested staff to review options of merging fire services with Placer County.  Discussions have 

been initiated in this regard and need to be incorporated in to our overall strategy. 

 

Staff will continue with developing apparatus reviews/plans and pursuing financial assistance.  We expected to 

have updates and recommendations for Council early in 2021. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  











City of Colfax Rotation of City Council Officers: Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 

Staff Report December 9, 2020 

Staff Report to City Council 

FOR THE DECEMBER 9, 2020 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

Subject: Rotation of City Council Officers: Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 
 Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   ã Funded:  Un-funded: Amount:  Fund(s):  

Summary/Background 

The ceremonial nature of the first Colfax City Council meeting in December usually involves rotating the 

Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem chairs. The rotation is typically accomplished by nominations to fill both seats and 

motions approving the nominations. 

Government Code Ä36801 provides ñThe City Council shall meet at the meeting at which the declaration of 

election results for a general municipal election is made pursuant to Sections 10262 and 10263 of the Elections 

Code and, following the declaration of the election results and the installation of elected officials, choose one of 

its number as Mayor and one of its number as Mayor Pro Tem.ò Section 36801 requires selection of a Mayor 

and Mayor Pro Tem but it does not dictate how the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem are selected. 

On October 23, 2019, the Council adopted the following policy regarding the selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro 

Tem: 

The Councilôs general policy is that every member should have the opportunity to rotate into and serve as 

Mayor Pro Tem and Mayor for succeeding one-year terms in each position. The Council reserves discretion to 

vary from this policy and the procedures it establishes.  

1. The Council will choose one of its members as Mayor and one of its members as Mayor Pro Tem as

follows:

A. At the first regular Council meeting in December of each year during which there is no general

election, the Council shall, by majority vote of a quorum present and voting, select its Mayor and

Mayor Pro Tem for the ensuing calendar year.

B. In years during which there is an election of members of the Council, the selection shall be made

following the declaration of the election results and installation of the members elected. That

selection will be made at the first regular Council meeting in December provided, however, that if

for any reason the declaration of election results is delayed beyond the first meeting in December,

then the selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem shall be made at the meeting at which the

declaration of election results is made, and after the declaration and installation of the members

elected.

2. This is the process the Council will follow each time a Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem is selected:

A. The Mayor Pro Tem shall be seated as Mayor.

B. The Council shall by majority vote of a quorum present and voting select one of its members to

serve as Mayor Pro Tem.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: By Separate motions, select a Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem. 



City of Colfax Rotation of City Council Officers: Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 

Staff Report December 9, 2020 

C. Council members who have served as Mayor Pro Tem or Mayor since their most recent election or

appointment to the Council shall serve as Mayor Pro Tem after Council Members who have not

served in either position

D. The public shall be invited to comment on the selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem before a vote

of the Council on either office is taken.

If the Council follows this most recent adopted policy, then Mayor Pro Tem Lomen will assume the role of 

Mayor and another member of the City Council will be seated as Mayor Pro Tem. The policy preserves the 

Councilôs discretion to vary from the established rotation. 

There is no legally defined process by which Council members are nominated for the office of Mayor or Mayor 

Pro Tem. Robertôs Rules of Order does not require nominations to be seconded, but Colfax has never formally 

adopted Robertôs Rules as its parliamentary procedure. The custom in Colfax is for nominations to be made and 

seconded. Once all nominations are made, those for which a second has also been made are voted on. The first 

nominee to receive the required number of votes is then seated. 

The Council policy requires a majority vote of a quorum present and voting to select its Mayor and Mayor Pro 

Tem. If four or five Council members are present and voting, three affirmative votes are required to make the 

selection. If three Council members are present and voting, two affirmative votes are required to make the 

selection. 

Selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem is uniquely a function of the Council. The Council establishes City 

Policy which staff is bound to implement. It is not appropriate for staff to become involved in the Councilôs 

selection of its officers except to provide factual information for Councilôs consideration. 


	00 - Agenda 12-9-20 Regular Meeting
	DRAFT Agenda Packet - with page numbers
	04A - Retail Strategies
	05A - Osborn PH
	12-09-20 staff report
	Attachment 1 Reso 12-9-20
	Reso Exhibit A COAs
	Attachment 2 site plan
	Attachment 3a elevations
	Attachment 3b elevations
	Attachment 3c elevations
	Attachment 4a colored rendering
	Attachment 4b colored rendering
	Attachment 5-Concept Lndscp L1.0
	Sheets and Views
	Concept Lndscp L1.0


	Attachment 6 Grading Plans
	Attachment 7
	Attachment 8 MMRP 12-9-20

	06A - Minutes - Regular Meeting 10-28-2020
	06B - Special Meeting & Wkshp 11-4-2020
	06C - Cash Summary
	201209 Cash Summary - October 2020 Staff Report
	2021-04 Oct Staff Report - Cash Summary - SR needs to be replaced

	06D - Quarterly Investment Report
	Staff Report - QE 09.30.20
	Quarterly Investment - QE 09.30.20 Attachments

	06E - LTF & STA Proportion
	201209 Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Local Transportation Funds and State Transit Assistance Funds Claim Documents Staff Report
	FY 2020-2021 LTF & STA Proportions - Reso
	2020-2021 LTF & STA Proportions

	06F - Batchelder Union Negotiator Amendment
	201209 The Batchelder Group Chief Negotiator Consultant Agreement - Budget Amendment Staff Report
	201209 The Batchelder Group Chief Negotiator Consultant Agreement - Budget Amendment Resolution
	Batchelder Group - Union Negotions Contract with Exhibit A - Fully Executed

	06G - PG&E Microgrid Easement
	201209 PG&E Microgrid Station Utility Easement APN 006-071-010 Staff Report
	201209 PG&E Microgrid Station Utility Easement APN 006-071-010 Resolution
	City of Colfax Utility Dist Final 11-18-20

	06H - Holt Solar WWTP Contract
	201209 Solar Design-Build Contract Staff Report
	201209 Solar Design-Build Contract Resolution
	Holt Proposal
	COLFAX RFP_HOLT Renewables_DesignBuild Methodology _11_23_2020
	COLFAX RFP_DesignBuild Cost_11_23_2020

	Contract

	06I - Green Means Go Pilot
	Green Means Go SR 12-9-20
	Green Means Go reso 12-9-20
	SACOG_GMG_Map (2)

	06J - Uniform Contract Cintas
	201209 Cintas Uniform Agreement Staff Report
	201209 Cintas Uniform Agreement Resolution
	OMNIA Partners Digital Acceptance Agreement

	09A - Pioneer Energy JPA Expansion
	Pioneer Packet - REVIEW
	201209 Pioneer Energy JPA Amendment #1 Staff Report
	201209 Pioneer Energy JPA Amendment #1 Resolution
	201209 Pioneer Energy JPA Amendment #1

	Colfax Impact Assessment Study Presentation December 9 2020 PPT

	09B - Sierra Property Development Agreement Extension
	201209 Second Amendment to Digital Billboard Sign and Relocation Agreement with Sierra Property Development Staff Report
	SPD Amendment - Reso UPDATED
	SPD Second Amendment Composite - Attachment 2

	09C - WaterTender & Staff Merger Update
	09D - Results of 11-3-20 Elections
	2020 Election Results SR
	2020 Election Results Reso

	09E - Oath of Office 2020
	09F - Rotation of Mayor-Pro Tem 2020




